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Summary of Achievements- TheNaval Air Station
Patuxent River’sCultural ResourcesProgram
developed an Integrated Cultural Resources
Management Program used asabackbonefor al
planning activities. Through the use of completed
Architectural and Archeologica Evauations, theNAS
hasbecomeaproactive, rather than areactive, team.
Command Support isakey component to the success
of the program. Partnershipswith neighboring historical
organi zations, such astheMaryland Archeologica
Conservation Laboratory, have been critical tothe
success of theprogram and theinfluenceit hashad on
the station. Whilelead memberscomefromvarious
departments, acooperativework ethic guaranteesa
seamlesswork flow for al projects.




I ntroduction

Commissioned on April 1, 1943, theNaval Air Station
(NAS) Patuxent River isnava aviation'spremiere
research, development, test and evaluationfacility. NAS
hostsafull spectrum of acquiSition management,
research and development capabilities, air and ground
test and evaluation (T& E), aircraft logisticsand

mai ntenance management for nava aviation.

L ocated 65 miles southeast of Washington, DC, the
NASisingrowing St. Mary’s County, Maryland, which
has apopul ation of approximately 85,000. Patuxent
River and the adjacent community of Lexington Park
congtitutethelargest concentration of employment inthe
county, withthefedera government thelargest
employer. TheNAS Patuxent River Complex
encompasses 13,913 acresand includes Webster Field
Annexin St. Inigoes, about eight milessouth of the
NAS, and the Bloodsworth Idland Range, located of f
Maryland’s Eastern Shore.

NAS Patuxent River and Webster Field Annex provide
office spacefor theNaval Air Systems Command
(NAVAIR) headquarters, theNaval Air Warfare Center
Aircraft Divison (NAWCAD) and morethan 50 other
tenant commands. Thetotal working population isabout
17,500 with about 6,800 civilian employees, 2,800
military members, and the remainder made up of
contract personnel.

Over 25 milesof shoreline, ranging from sandy beaches
totidal marshes, linethreesidesof theinstallation.
Bordered by the Patuxent River and Chesapeake Bay,
the NA S hasthree seaplane basins, six man-made
freshwater ponds, and threetidal creeks. Withinthis
natura environment, thereareamost ninemillion square
feet of floor space at thenaval air stationand 79 miles
of roads.

Background

In additionto the abundance of natural resourcesat the
Complex, thereisalso great historical and cultural
sgnificancewithinthegrounds. Prehistoric Sites,
categorized by stonetool s dating back 5,000 to 8,000
years, have been found here a ong the shoresof the
Chesapeake. In 1637, Jesuitsfrom nearby St. Mary’s
City werealowedtoleavethe St. Mary City settlement
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Mike Smolek, Executive Director, Jefferson Patterson Park
and Museum and Doug L ister, NAS Patuxent River Natural
Resource Specialist, look on as Julie King, Chief of the
Maryland Archeological Conservation Lab, shows Capt.
Dane Swanson, CO NAS Patuxent River, some of the early
artifacts found on station and housed at the Museum'’s
MAC Lab.

and rel ocated to Mattapany, whichiswithinthe
boundariesof NAS. Until the 19" century, Mattapany
continued to operate asatypica Southern Maryland
plantation. When the Navy purchased the property in
1942, the plantation house, dating back to1742, was
converted into housing quarters. Additiona historical
Sitesare scattered throughout the NAS area.

I ntegrated Cultural Resources Management Plan

Completed in September 2002, the Integrated Cultural
Resources Management Plan (ICRMP) isafive-year
planning document created to provideinstallation staff
with information and guidance on balancing historic
preservation regulationswiththeNavy'smission. It
providesacomprehensive approach to project
coordination and resource management. With thisgoa
inmind, thel CRMP provides both short and long term
recommendationsfor consideration of cultural resources
in coordinated project planning and identifying,
evaluating, and treating cultural resources.

Thedocument isdivided intofive principle sections.
Theseinclude purpose and scope, missonand
philosophy, regulatory requirementsand procedures,
resourceinventory and treatment, and operation and
implementation guidelines. Thel CRMPisintended to
be adecision document and recommends aseries of
strategiesto befunded and implemented as part of
NAS Patuxent River’songoing effortsto comply with



federa historic preservationlawsand regulationsand
remain aleader in resource stewardship.

Architectural and Archeological Evaluation and
National Register Status

In November 2000, NA S compl eted atwo-year
evaluation project resultinginaMultiple Property
Documentation Form entitled Historic Architectural
ResourcesNaval Air Station Patuxent River. Building
on several earlier studiesconducted for theinstallation,
thisproject evaluated al World War 11, post war, and
ColdWaer erafacilitiesbuilt prior to 1950 for historical/
architecturd sgnificanceand Nationa Regigter digibility
incompliancewith Section 110 of the Nationa Historic
Preservation Act of 1966, asamended. Both NASand
the Maryland State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO)
concur with thefindingsand recommendationsof this
document per aconcurrenceletter dated March 13,
2000.

Theevauation a so produced two district National
Register nomination formsand el evenindividua Nationa
Register nominationformsfor atotal of 50 architectural
resourcesdigiblefor theNational Register. Todate, NAS
hassubmitted al of these nominationformstothe
Maryland SHPO for review and comment. Upon
acceptancefrom the Maryland SHPO, NAS plansto
send the nominationsthrough the chain of command for
formal listing to the National Register of Historic Places.

NAShasaso completed two additional district
nominationsin 2002 including amulticomponent Steat
the Mattapany-Sewall complex and the Point L ookout
Light Station complex, anominationwhichwas
completed by thearchitectura historian. Both of these
formshave al so been sent to the Maryland SHPO and
will besubmitted for formd listing upon completion.

Of the 163 previously recorded archeol ogical resources
only one, Site 18ST390, hasbeenformally listedinthe
National Register. Thissiterefersto thehomeof Charles
Cdvert, Third Lord Baltimore, and isamulticomponent
sitedating fromthelate 17"tomid 18"century.

Top: Artifacts recovered from various archological digs at
NAS Patuxent River.
Above: An aeria photograph of Mattapany-Sewall mansion.

Memorandumsof Agreement (MOAS)

Fiveagreementsarecurrently in place between NAS,
SHPO and the Advisory Council onHistoric
Preservation. Current MOASsinclude:

¢ Demoalition of catapults (108, 1083, 119,
and 159), toinclude recordation and exhibit
design. MOA signed February 2001.

¢ Demalitionof Centrifugd Gun Tester
(Building 205) including recordation. MOA
sgned August 2001.

¢ Interior renovation of Firehouse#2
(Building 443), including recordation. MOA
signed May 2001.

¢+ Renovation/Rehabilitation of Hangar 144,
thisincludes salvageand exhibit design.
MOA signed December 1999 and salvage
component of project wascompletedin
November 2000.



¢ Rehabilitation of Air Operationsand
Control Tower (Building 103), including
project design. MOA signed February
2002.

Additionally, four MOAS, written to mitigate adverse
effectsof historic resources, have been completed
within FY 2002:

¢ MILCON —Construction of new Boat
Houseand Demoalition of Building 214,
included recordation and design review.
MOA wassigned in February 2001 and
completed in December 2002.

¢ MILCON —Constructionof T&E
Support Facility withinan historic digtrict,
including designreview, recordation, and
exhibit desgn. MOA wassignedin
February 2001 and completedin
September 2002.

¢ Demoalition of Building490. Thisincluded a
driving panel ingtallation and wasan
agreement between theMaryland SHPO,
NAS, and the Maryland State Highway
Administration to accommodatethe Route
235 Road Widening project.

¢ Categorization of dl historic housing units.
In November 2000, the NAS compl eted
categorization of al historic housing units
per theNavy wide Historic Housing
Programmeatic Agreement.

Theoversight of thecultural resources management
program at the NA Sfallsunder the auspicesof the
Environmental Department. Doug Lister, Natural and
Cultural Resource Specidigt, isin chargeof the Cultural
Resources program. Dawn Muir, architectura historian
with the Public Works Department, assistswith the
architectural component of thisprogram.

Program Summary

Cooperative agreements between the NASand local
historica organizationsareasgnificant factor tothe
success of the Cultural Resource program. A seven-
year curation agreement with the Jefferson Patterson
Park and Museumin St. Leonard, Maryland provides
for threethings. the assessment of theartifact collection
and stabilization of objectsthat requireit; long-term

The Historic Point Lookout Light Station is one of the
more architecturally unusual lighthouses in the country.

storagefor Patuxent River’scollectionsat the
Museum’sMaryland Archeol ogical Laboratory; and
making the collection avail ableto researchers
worldwidethrough JPPM’sdatabase. NAS Patuxent
River’scollectionswerethefirst DoD collections
entered into thisdatabase. The cooperative partnerships
between he NAS Patuxent River Cultural Resources
program and neighboring historical and cultural
organizationsisakey component in the successful
management of the program. The use of these
agreementsalowsthe preservation of artifacts, the
sharing of Sgnificant historica information and acurrent
inventory statusthat isoneof thefirst of itskind
between afedera agency and ahistorical museum.

Nearby St. Mary’sCity isanother significant historical
area. Cultural exchangesoftentakeplace. Severd times
ayear NASlends materialsfor the preparation and
display of Historic St. Mary’s City Days. Wood,
antlers, anima hidesand artifactsare cooperatively
shared between the NASand severd regional historical
programs.

Monthly articleshighlighting historica and cultural
resourcesat NASwerecreated in FY 2001. These
Spotlight Serieshighlight acultural resourceor acluster
of resourcesin an attempt to inform theworking
community of the resourcesaround them. Put together
entirely in house, each power point articleisuploaded



to the NAS Web page and sent out asalink to
employeesat NAS.

Thebooklets, driving tours, Web links, and guidebooks
produced by NAS Cultural Resourcesare apowerful
link tothecultural resourceson NASfor the station
personnel and the community. Thedrivingtour at NAS,
with 27 boards showcasing areas of interest and an
accompanying booklet areboth alearning tool for the
historian and gift to the community. Therecent addition
of tour stopsat Webster Field Annex highlight the
commitment of the NAS Executiveleadership tofund
and support cultural resourcesprogramsat NAS
Patuxent River.

To help support the military readinessand civil works
mission at the NA S, A Guidebook to Preservation of
Architectural Resources at NAS Patuxent River was
writtenin FY 2002 to help explain the preservation and
compliance processaswell astherulesand lawsdriving
thecultural resourcesprogram at NAS. Writtenand
produced entirely in house, the guide provides phone
numbers, e-mail addresses, Web sites, and technical
informationtoassst in planning projectsinvolving
historic sitesand structures. Givento all program
managers, team leads, front office staff, and major
public works customers, thisresource servesasa

planning tool for project managersand aidsin
completing projectsthat meet theNavy’ smissonwhile

retaining someof itsunique past.

Accomplishments

Threeadditional cooperative agreementswiththe
Exhibits Services Program of the Jefferson Patterson
Park and M useum contributeto the successin making
thelocal community aware of the cultural resources
availableat the Patuxent River Complex. Devel opment
of acultural resourcesdriving tour and companion
booklet for Webster Field Annex, similar to theLifeat
Cedar Point driving tour and booklet, beganin FY 02
and will becompletedin FY 03.

Tensgnshighlighting culturadl and historicd significant
stesat WFA wereinstalled to educate the community
about thehistory of thearea. Additionally, theNAS
will participatein theMaryland Heritage Tourism
Initiative* Star Spangled Banner Trail” which highlights
War of 1812 sitesin Maryland. Finaly, aplanfor the
interpretation of Sgnificant architectural resourceshas
been implemented. During theawardstime period,

The cover of the 30-page driving tour pamphl et created
by NAS Cultural Resources, Life at Cedar Point.

NAS Patuxent River asofinalized aStation
Disturbance Assessment. Thisproject defined those
areason theingtdlation that are devoid of

archaeol ogical resourcesdueto significant subsurface
disturbance and therefore do not requireany more
consultation under Section 106 of the National Historic
Preservation Act (NHPA). Thisproject wasthefirst
stepin completing Pax River’ sarchaeol ogical Section
110 obligations of the NHPA.

InFY 2001, NAS Patuxent River Cultural Resources
conducted aPhasell eval uation of the Rousby site, a
late 17" century sitethat wasthelocation of King
Jamesl| tax collector, Christopher Rousby. This
project wasconducted in partid fulfillment of Section
110of NHPA. Thesiteisrichwith featuresrelating to
thehomesite of awealthy 17" century person.
Additionaly, 75 acresweresurveyed in compliance
with Section 106 of HHPA.. These discoveriescontinue
to add archaeological datato Pax River’sGIS.
Outreach throughtours, lectures, and displaysof recent
cultural resources projectscontinueto involvethelocal
community.

Though not through aformal written agreement, there
areasoinformal verbal agreementsbetweentheNAS
and the surrounding community. Historic St. Mary’s
City, aninterpretive historical center, oftenworkswith
the Cultural Resourcesoffice. Materia sfromthe
station, such asbones, hides, antlersand wood, are



often lent to the historic center for constructionand
furnishingsof an Indian longhouseand other buildings.

InMay 2002, the NA S Patuxent River Cultural
Resources Group wasawarded aSt. Mary’s County
Historic Preservation Service Award. Thisaward
recognizesoutstanding achievement in and support for
furthering theaimsof historic preservationin St. Mary’s
County, including education, research, development,
planning advocacy, and community leadership. NAS
Patuxent River Cultural Resources Group was
nominated for providing excellent stewardship of its
cultural resourcesaswell asproviding strong
community involvement inthehistorical and cultural
resourcesarena.

Welcome to NAS PAX River
Webster Field Annex
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Above: A worker excavating an archeological site at
NAS Patuxent River.

Above: AE3 Zahir Calhoun in the VC-6 office, NAS
Patuxent River, is the first person to read the new sign
for the driving tour at Webster Field Annex. Theten
signsinstalled around Webster Field Annex describe
the historical background of the area. Driving tour
signs and booklets are available at both NAS Patuxent
River and WFA.

Left: Sign 1 of the WFA driving tour signboards.



Old Chapel Field

St. Inigoes Manor House

The Jesuits’ First Residence ¢.1638-60
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Webster Field Annex driving tour signboards2 and 3.

Old Chapel Field

Archaeologists Discoveries

Recent excavations prowvidsd insight into the earty 13"
certtury Jesurt adbivity ot St Inigoes, as they suocessfulby
expanded their diverse agricultural enferprise. lesuit use
ot this area ooourred during the lase 17 and first half of
the 18" centur.

Fuidence: al a clusler ol 1B cenlurg buildings was recou-
ered. Several fragments of eathenware ceramics af a
form frequenthy used in the processing of dairy products
were found in association with & brick flear, and it has
been speculated that ths structure wes used as a dairy.
This wwewild be conmsistent with the propecty’s use for
Farming activitizs during the early 18" century, when the
lesuits bobn had cattle, harses, and extensie agricolur-
al fields Ceramics and tobaceo pipe fragments togeth er
Foemn ower half of the artifacts discovered in this possible
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dairy structure. Bvidence of large comer posts were s2an

irn three corners, supgesting that it was o freme building,

By probing into gaps within the brick flaor, archazalo-
gists discovered that there was a tloor overleying a filled
wellar, Excavations of the colker fill revealed o lirmestone
Dok Moo Thel resled upsan an eedier, lale TP
winnden Hoor. Architectural artifacts discowered within
the cellar indicatzd that the interiar walls of the eclor
weare linesd wath white plasier and that the sbucturs
had a daub chimney awer a brick firebex or foundatian,
Bvidence indicated that the structure may have been
destrayed by 2 fire,

This structure was used and renovated a number
of times, and its function remains a mystery,
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Chesapeake Bay Erosion

the Scouring of Priests Point

The History of Erosion at Priests Point

Erosion has plagued Priests Point ever since the found-
ing il Marylancl At born of the 197 conbuny, the Jesuits
determined that emsion had causead the less af apposi-
matzhy 200 acres to their 5t Inigoes plantaticn. In 1905
the Jesuits began the first of many attemnpts at stabiliz
ing the shareling, They erected a pine stake sea wall,
which, unforiunately, failed o stem the erosicn tide.
After the Maww acquired Sk Inigoes, attempls were
implemented to halt additional loss by pladng vsed
concrete alang the shore. In addition to the concrete,
affshere hraakwaters were created 1o reduos wive
enargy &nd limit the loss. These attempts also failed.
I 2002, g oew projeet Bogan which mvabeed adding
fill and installatinn nf nffshore breakwaters and sills

in ar attempt to tinally stabilize the shorelina.
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Thedetailsof the Webster Field Annex driving tour signboards4 and 5.

Priests Point—Circa 1910
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The Jesuit's Third Manor House

Tha lz2zuits relnczted to this area arnund 1750 The rea-
san for this is unknoan, but exbausted agricubural ficlds
and crasswinds to provide healthier air on the paint may
have bean factars. A descrption of the third manor howse
1% provacied by 1. Echean Coad:

“The maner was of Enghsh birth, e walls
Dewng very thick and massive. The grownd
Filoar fiad five roome _The cectral ar main
AR Wers an efegant one aad must have
Been twenty four feat square with igh
ceifing. From the north frent there was o
syperts Wews of the uppey S5 Mary's.,. The
oo of the ol house wos quadricteral and
very much poeked with foee ol ciimnoys
[ercing i, shaneding fike faur grim sentingls 3 ]
in their hefmets squore, ever on duty.” : It R Sy g s
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I Janueary 1572, the manor house was largehy destroyed
by fives, A chserver described the “oradked and <harsed
wills..a sarcastic reminder of it pristine grandeur” Many
priceless documents were [ost, although a largs table,
leged o have Deen used by Lord Baltimare's council,
wias saved. The causa of the blaze is uncermin, but it may
have baen a defective fiue, Those remaining porians of
the structire which were still usable were incorporated
inta a new, smaller house erected on the existing foun-
dlation, but the difference betwssen the hoe buildings
wias described as that between "a cnttage and & rastle”

I earky 1978, the wiest, nortth and =outh walls of the
imain house were dermolished, while much of the cast
widll was left intact. &fter demalidan, the kitchen was
re-rocted and the cxposcd walls of the main housc
were capped wilth concrete,
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Webster Field Annex driving tour signboards6 and 7.

Estuaries—A Delicate Balance

Langley Hollow

Wedands are vital ta the health and productivity of the
Cheszpeake Bay. They are crudal for reducing erosion
due i wetland plants” abilily @ filler and hold sedi
menls, Wetlands also provide a mgriad of coodal hali-
tats tor insects, tish, shelfish. birds and mammals.

hine crahs can he zeen scudding
across the surface ot the flats. Thes=
organisaes [2od on a ich supply of
planktamnic. o bome by the flood-
ing tide, and are in turn consumed
by weading Eirds and other large ani
mals. Raccoons aften visit e mud
flots in hopes of inding & tasty meal.
Mose often then mat, enlv eddence
af the raccoans im the farm of tracks
ur droppings gives indiction of their
having visired the flars.

The mud flat zan be & bantal place fo live, Wity cach
daily tde cycls it is exposed to the heat of te sur and
o the drying action of the wind and air The sizes of
the soil particles that make up the mod flat fine silks
and clays] determine what type af maring arimals will
inhakbit it

Inussrbehrates, such as annelids (wormes) and mollusks
{clams), can often be faund helow the surface of the
mud flat, while larger crganisms such as fiddler and
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Prehistoric Points to Ponder

1 lumens hae cooupked portons of Webster Feld for
raughty 5000 pears. Tiventy-seven prehistoric sites
have been identified aboard Webster Field Annex.

Mt of these sitex cabe frean the Middls Ardhaic Period
and continue theough the Late Wondland Perind, sug-
gozhing that the aren was highly desirable trom both
resource procurernznl and agricullural produclicn
standpaints.
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During the Late Wocdland
perad af approximately
TUC years agoy, pecpls
began culthating beans,
squash, and cam. Mot
aniy viere the residents
able 1 feed thamsehes
and sasintain enough
seed fior the fol lnwing
vear's planting. they were
absu produding envugh
surpluses tn pay tricute
to & local or regional ruler

Artifiects resmmining in the ground sre used to date pres
histaric sites, which hawa noowritten dooimerntation
that can be wsed as o reference. One of the most com-
mion weeys Io dale a prehislane sile = wilt The Bithic, or
stone, projectile point. ten refered tn as "arow-
hcads” mest are actually spear or dart points since the
Lot anid arvaw wves et develioped urtil about AL 8O,
Projectile paint types changed over time tor both func-
ticnal and stylistic reasons.
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lhen the English anrired, they quickly learmed that
tpbacen was going o be their main cash oop and pro-
ceeded o convert vast acreaga ino tillable tobacos
fielels, Because tolacn omps cooses sail nutrieot dJeple-
tion, a farmer was required 1o have 3 minimuom ok 50
ocres o allow for fields to remain fallaw for 15 years.
aller 3 years of planting Lebaca, Crop yields veere [oa
due to the time requirement of planting carn and
tobacoa in individual mounds.

During the 14" and 19" cantures, the Jesuits experi-
mented it different crops, including wheat, clower,
Nig, £0rN, 0ats, tumips, potatoes and flax. The Jesuits
wiere one of the first in the county [ underssand the
negative affects tobacco had an the soil.
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nawt and improved t=chnologies. Slavery and tenant
farmers played & substantal part in agrcultural pro-
aluction curing this firme.

Today, madern farming practices allow for cultivation
ol larsd previously lea pasture or wood lol dus o
ponr sail eondition and water retention. Crop vields at
Wchster Ficld Rawe recontly caccoded all cxpectations
diwe to soil conditioning (Tming) and use of fertilzer,

on prime fields, erop pield averages 150 bustels of
coan and B0 bushels of beans. On racently conmerted
ance marginal land, crop yield was 142 bushels of corn
and 50 of heans—almost equal to those prime fields

Thedetailsof the Webster Field Annex driving tour signboards 8, 9 and 1

Protection of Our Heritage

Archaeological sites an federal property 2re national
treasures preserved for the benefit of all people, The

Features indude bridk foundations, oyster shell middans
(piles) depasited by prebistoric peopbe, posthales, priv-

professional archasolo-
gists can study that site

information contained within a site, whether przhis-
toric or historc, can provide valuable insight into oor
past. Infarmation fam a site comes in many shapas
and sizes—ranging from stone projectils points [amow
brzaels) found at andent Amesican ndian campsites,
te pipe stems and ceramin from colonial sites,
metal, brick and glass objects from the mors recant
Lismne peerioeds.

Even microscopic pollen can be recovered and gires
clues ta the food peopls ate and to the ssasors that
an ared was inhabited. These objects, or artifacts, by
thamseives il anly a =mall part of the overall history
of the site, The Incation objects have in relation to
each ather and in relation to features is called the
uhject’s context and Hhat 15 how o sibe s interpreted.
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izs, wells, or other evidence of hurman cooupatian.

nn example af the swealth of infarmation awailahle
tromn an object’s context can be demaonstrated with
werdmmies from o eoloniel site Whoere ceramic objoets
are found in relation o 2 brick fsundation can heip
us datarmine the dats of the construction and iden-
Lily bowe Lhe Building weas used. Fediaps il can el us
where colonial peaple deposited their rash, what
ther sacial stabus may hawe been, ar how their house
s orlented,

Onee twese objects are removed from their comtest B
appErLnity o make hose deteminations is forever
lzst and the value of a site is diminished. 1t is of utrnost
irnporbanee that ebjects frsm a site sty inplace unbl

1ol Cgta L 1, ket 2 DT, sl i
7 et Turkcied Bt

and share the know-
edge of that site for
the kenefit of all,

ARTIFACT

Fuckoral lavies protiet

COLLECTING
vaunorsed wroa | PROHIBITED

of artifacts uneer the -
Archeological Resources
Protection Act Persons engzged in this type of activity
face Fnes, Jall, or bath upon comdction. Please help
to presenve the rich heritage of these valuable sites

by reporting amy unauthorized digzing or collecting

10 shation security.
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